Before the

Administrative Hearing Commission

State of Missouri

MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND 
)

TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION, 
)



)



Petitioner,
)




)


vs.

)

No. 08-1235 MC



)

MICHAEL PRATHER,
)




)



Respondent. 
)

DECISION AND ORDERS

Michael Prather twice violated 49 CFR § 391.45(b)(1) and § 307.400
 by not having been medically examined and certified as qualified to operate a commercial vehicle before he transported hazardous materials in a commercial motor vehicle during intrastate commerce. 

We cancel the hearing set for December 16, 2008.

We deny as moot the motion to continue the hearing that the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission (“MHTC”) filed.

Procedure


The MHTC filed a complaint on June 27, 2008, and filed an amended complaint on 
July 7, 2008.  Prather was served with a copy of the complaint, the amended complaint, and our notice of hearing by certified mail on July 16, 2008.  Prather did not file an answer.

On October 30, 2008, the MHTC filed a motion for summary determination.  Prather did not file a response.  On November 19, 2008, we issued an order denying the motion because the MHTC failed to prove that Prather was transporting hazardous materials.  We did not grant summary determination for Prather, but stated that we would convene the previously scheduled hearing on December 16, 2008.


On December 8, 2008, the MHTC filed a motion to continue the hearing and a motion to reconsider our denial of the motion for summary determination.  The MHTC supported its motion to reconsider with an affidavit and attached pages from Web sites of the National Automobile Dealers Association and the Motorcycle Encyclopedia to show that the motor vehicles that Prather was transporting were powered by flammable liquid and with a citation to the federal regulation that designates such vehicles as hazardous materials.

We grant the motion to reconsider.  Our Regulation 1 CSR 15-3.440(3) provides that we may decide a motion for summary determination without a hearing if the MHTC establishes facts that (a) Prather does not dispute and (b) entitle the MHTC to a favorable decision.  Based on the evidence submitted with the motion for summary determination and the motion to reconsider, we find that the following facts are undisputed.
Findings of Fact

1. Prather was an employee of Northland Tow Service, LLC, located in Parkville, Missouri. 
2. On September 19, 2007, Prather operated a 2006 Chevrolet truck (“the Chevrolet”) while transporting a 2001 Ford F 150 pickup truck (“the Ford”) on public highways in intrastate commerce from Kansas City, Missouri, to Parkville, Missouri.
3. The Chevrolet had a gross vehicle weight rating (“GVWR”) of 24,000 pounds.

4. The Ford is a vehicle powered by a flammable liquid.

5. On September 21, 2007, Prather operated the Chevrolet while transporting a 2003 Harley-Davidson VRSCA V-Rod motorcycle (“the Harley”) on public highways in intrastate commerce from Kansas City, Missouri, to another location in Kansas City, Missouri.
6. The Harley is a vehicle powered by a flammable liquid.

7. Prather was not medically examined and certified within 24 months before September 19 or September 21, 2007.

Conclusions of Law


We have jurisdiction to hear the MHTC’s complaint.
  The MHTC must show by clear and satisfactory evidence that Prather violated the law.
 

The MHTC’s amended complaint asserts: 

11.  On or about the dates below, Michael Prather violated 49 CFR §391.45(b)(1) and §307.400, RSMo, in that he failed to be medically examined and certified to show he is physically qualified to operate a commercial motor vehicle prior to operating the commercial motor vehicle referenced in paragraph 7, when transporting Category 9 hazardous materials in intrastate commerce, on or about the dates below:
(a) September 19, 2007; and

(b) September 21, 2007. 

Section 307.400 provides:
1.  It is unlawful for any person to operate any commercial motor vehicle as defined in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 390.5, either singly or in combination with a trailer, as both vehicles are defined in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 390.5, unless such vehicles are equipped and operated as required by Parts 390 through 397, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as such regulations have been and may periodically be amended, whether intrastate transportation or interstate transportation.
*   *   *

7.  Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection 1 of this section to the contrary, Parts 390 through 397, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations shall not apply to commercial motor vehicles operated in intrastate commerce to transport property, which have a gross vehicle weight rating or gross combination weight rating of twenty-six thousand pounds or less.  The exception provided by this subsection shall not apply to vehicles transporting hazardous materials or to vehicles designed to transport sixteen or more passengers including the driver as defined by Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations.  Nothing in this subsection shall be construed to prohibit persons designated by the department of public safety from inspecting vehicles defined in this subsection.

(Emphasis added).  49 CFR § 390.5 provides in part:

Commercial motor vehicle means any self-propelled or towed motor vehicle used on a highway in interstate commerce to transport passengers or property when the vehicle—

(1) Has a gross vehicle weight rating or gross combination weight rating, or gross vehicle weight or gross combination weight, of 4,536 kg (10,001 pounds) or more, whichever is greater; or

*   *   *
(4) Is used in transporting material found by the Secretary of Transportation to be hazardous under 49 U.S.C. 5103 and transported in a quantity requiring placarding under regulations prescribed by the Secretary under 49 CFR, subtitle B, chapter I, subchapter C.

*   *  *

For-hire motor carrier means a person engaged in the transportation of goods or passengers for compensation.

*   *   *

Motor carrier means a for-hire motor carrier or a private motor carrier.[
]
Title 49 CFR § 391.45 provides:
Except as provided in § 391.67,[
] the following persons must be medically examined and certified in accordance with § 391.43 as physically qualified to operate a commercial motor vehicle:
*   *   *

(b)(1) Any driver who has not been medically examined and certified as qualified to operate a commercial motor vehicle during the preceding 24 months[.]
Title 49 U.S.C. § 5103 provides:

(a) Designating material as hazardous.--The Secretary [of Transportation] shall designate material (including an explosive, radioactive material, infectious substance, flammable or combustible liquid, solid, or gas, toxic, oxidizing, or corrosive material, and compressed gas) or a group or class of material as hazardous when the Secretary determines that transporting the material in commerce in a particular amount and form may pose an unreasonable risk to health and safety or property.
(b) Regulations for safe transportation.--(1) The Secretary shall prescribe regulations for the safe transportation, including security, of hazardous material in intrastate, interstate, and foreign commerce.

The Secretary of Transportation includes in the definition of hazardous materials set forth in 49 CFR § 171.8 “materials designated as hazardous in the Hazardous Materials Table (see 49 CFR 172.101)[.]”  The Hazardous Materials Table lists within hazardous class 9 any “vehicle, flammable liquid powered.” 


The Chevrolet that Prather was driving is a commercial motor vehicle under the federal definition because it has a GVWR of 10,001 pounds or more and, independently, because as explained below it was used to transport material that the Secretary of Transportation designated as hazardous.  Because Prather was hired to transport property, he was a motor carrier.  Under 
these facts, the federal transportation safety regulations apply to Prather by force of § 307.400.1.  However, § 307.400.7 could except Prather’s September 19 and 21, 2007, transports from 
§ 307.400.1 because the Chevrolet had a GVWR of 24,000 pounds and traveled only in intrastate commerce.  Nevertheless, § 307.400.7’s exception does not apply because the Ford and the Harley being transported are powered by a flammable liquid, rendering them hazard class 9 materials.  Therefore, Prather violated § 307.400.1 and 49 CFR § 391.45(b)(1) by failing to be medically examined and certified as qualified to operate a commercial vehicle within the period that 49 CFR § 391.45(b)(1) required.
Summary


Prather violated § 307.400.1 and 49 CFR § 391.45(b)(1) by not being medically examined and certified as qualified to operate a commercial vehicle within 24 months before transporting hazardous materials intrastate in a commercial motor vehicle on September 19 and September 21, 2007.


SO ORDERED on December 10, 2008.


________________________________



DOUGLAS M. OMMEN


Commissioner

�Statutory references are to RSMo Supp. 2007, unless otherwise noted.


	�Sections 621.040 and 226.008.4.    


	�Section 622.350.


	�Recent amendments to this regulation do not affect these definitions.


�49 CFR § 391.67 does not apply here because it excepts “a farm vehicle driver . . . who is 18 years of age or older and who drives an articulated commercial motor vehicle[.]”
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